
 
 

 

TOWN OF WEATHERSFIELD 
SELECTBOARD 

 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

 
MONDAY, FEBRUARY 07, 2022 AT 6:30PM 

ASCUTNEY VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT  
540 US ROUTE 131, ASCUTNEY, VT 05030 

 
ZOOM MEETING AVAILABLE 

CLICK THE BRIDGE ON WEBSITE HOMEPAGE OR 
PHONE NUMBER: (929) 205 - 6099 | MEETING ID: 542-595-4364 | 

NO PARTICIPANT ID: PRESS # MEETING PASSCODE: 8021 

 
 

PHONE 
(802) 674-2626 

 
FAX 

(802) 674-2117 

 
 

1. Call to Order 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 

3. Comments from the Board, Town Manager and Citizens on topics not on the agenda 

4. Review minutes from previous meeting: 11-29-2022; 01-03-2022; 01-20-2022 

5. Town Manager Update 

6. American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Discussion 

7. FY22 Quarter 2 Finance Report 

8. Fund Balance Discussion 

9. Annual Town Report - Budget Narrative & SB Report 

10. Draft Town Meeting Presentation 

11. Substitute Town Manager Discussion 

a. To discuss the appointment of a substitute during Town Manager vacations/leave.  

12. Proposed future agenda items 

13. Approve Warrant 

14. Any other business 

15. Adjourn 

 
All regular meetings are broadcasted live on Comcast channel 1087, VTEL Channel 161, and SAPA.org on 
Wednesdays at 06:30pm. 
 

 
POSTED  

02-04-2022 AT 5:00PM 
 

 



  

 

\ 

Select Board Meeting 
Ascutney Volunteer Fire Department 

Special Meeting 
DRAFT of Select Board Meeting Minutes 

Thursday, 20, 2022 6:30 PM 
 

Select Board Members Present: 
David Fuller 
Paul Tillman 
Kelly O’Brien 
Michael Todd 
Brandon Gulnick, Town Manager 
 
Select Board Members Abscent: Joey Jarvis 
 
Attendees: Ray Stapleton, Darrin Spaulding, Colby, Christopher, Derek 
 
The Public was permitted to attend this meeting in person. Remote public participation was not available. 
Meeting was recorded by SAPA TV. 
 
Please note, no Recording Secretary was present for this meeting. Minutes are from the SelectBoard 
Clerk and members of the Selectboard. The SAPA TV recording was not available in time for the 
meeting to be posted. 
 

1.) Call to Order by Chair, David Fuller at 6:00 pm 
 

2.) Pledge of Allegiance was not done as there was not an American Flag inside the Fire Department. 
 

3.) Comments from Select Board Members, Town Manager and Residents on topics not on the agenda. 
 
Comments from David Fuller:  
 
Meeting was postponed on Tuesday January 18th to this evening, 1/20/22. At 6:10 pm on January 18th he 
received a phone call that an employee from Martin Memorial Hall had tested positive to COVID. He tried to 
contact the Town Manager and was not successful so the meeting was postponed.  The next day at 5 pm he 
was notified that there was another positive COVID from the staff and David closed Martin Memorial Hall 
down.  
 
All employees were then told to work from home. Some employee/employees were making their own rules to 
go into the building after it was closed down. The board needs to have some type of communication set up in 
case there is no one to make these decisions.  
 
SERVEPRO has been called to come in to disinfect the entire building so that we can have documentation that 
it was done. There will be no admittance for 24 hours after this is done. 

 
Town elected positions have been posted. Check the town site. There is another waiver for the signature sheet 
this year you just need to contact Flo Ann at the Town Office on Monday the 24th to see how to get on the 
ballot. 

 
No other comments from the board. 



  

 

\ 

Darrin Spaulding said that he received two telephone calls from a Town employee and they were not very nice 
to him about the closing of Martin Memorial Hall. People need to follow the chain of command. 
 

 
4.) Review of minutes from previous meetings: 11-29-21 and 1-3-22 

 
Michael Todd made a motion to approve the meeting minutes from 11-29-21 with corrections if needed. 
Paul Tillman- 2nd 

No Discussion 
Vote – Unanimous 
 
Michael Todd made a motion to approve the meeting minutes from 1-3-22 with corrections if needed. 
Paul Tillman- 2nd 

No Discussion 
Vote – Unanimous 

 
5.) Town Manager Report 

 
No Town Manager Report, due to Town Manager not being able to be present and no remote access to the 
Selectboard Meeting. 
 

6.) FY22 Quarter 2 Finance Report – postponed to next meeting 
 

7.) Fund Balance Discussion – postponed to next meeting 
 

8.) FY23 General Fund Budget – postponed to next meeting 
 

 
9.) AVFD Fire Truck Proposal  

 
10.) AVFD Fire Truck RFP – postponed to next meeting 
 

 
 

11.) Plow Truck Financing Options  
 

INTRODUCTION 

The Highway Department is seeking to replace the class 4/5 2012 F-550 4x4 19,300 lb. GVW truck with 
electric over hydraulic 9’ drop side dump body, 9’ fisher plow and three-yard, single drive inserts stainless 
steel sander with a new class 4/5 22,500 lb. minimum GVW rated 4x4 truck with live hydraulics, 9’ stainless 
steel body, duel drive stainless steel tail gate sander with pre-wetting system, front full trip reversing frame 
plow, and side mounted wing. 

According to the Highway Department, the goal is to increase our efficiencies while plowing and performing 
other road maintenance task, reduce the amount of salt used by being able to control the material feed and lane 
width independently, pre wet the salt resulting in a 20-30% reduction in salt used per application, and improve 
our ability to respond to winter maintenance issues such as plow truck break downs/ slide offs, or employee 
shortages. 



  

 

\ 

The Body, Sander, Plow, and Wing Estimate is $60K & chassis estimates are between $60K & $70K. The 
total cost of the truck is estimated at $120K-$130K. 

FINANCE OPTIONS: 

 

 

12.) Town Meeting Articles 
 

Town of Weathersfield, Vermont  
Warning for the Annual Town Meeting  
Saturday, February 26th and Tuesday, March 1st, 2022  
 
Due to COVID-19, we will be holding a Virtual Town Meeting this year.  
 
The legal voters of the Town of Weathersfield, Vermont, are hereby notified and warned to meet via Zoom on 
Saturday, the 26th day of February 2022, at 12:30 P.M., to act on articles 1 -16? The Zoom meeting can be 
accessed by phone, tablet, or computer.  
 
To access the meeting by phone dial (929) 205-6099. Enter Meeting ID # 542-595-4364. There is not a 
participant ID press # to continue. Enter Meeting Password 8021#.  
 
To access the meeting by either tablet or computer download the Zoom Application and enter meeting ID # 
542-595-4364 and enter passcode 8021 OR click/enter the following link: 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/5425954364?pwd=RlNJQm9ubkpjSkxta2VoR3RnYmRTdz09 
 
There is a Town Meeting news article located on the news section of the Weathersfield Website at 
weathersfieldvt.org that provides more detailed instructions for accessing this remote meeting.  
 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/5425954364?pwd=RlNJQm9ubkpjSkxta2VoR3RnYmRTdz09


  

 

\ 

Voting by Australian ballot will be conducted at Martin Memorial Hall, at 5259 U.S. Route 5 in Ascutney, on 
Tuesday, the 1st day of March 2022. [The polls will open at 10:00 A.M. and close at 7:00 P.M. on that date], 
to act on the following articles:  
 
Article 1: Shall the voters of the Town of Weathersfield accept the reports of the Town’s officers for the 
period from July 1, 2020, through June 30, 2021.  

 
Motion made by Michael Todd 
Paul Tillman – 2nd 
No discussion 
Vote - unanimous 

 
Article 2: Shall the voters of the Town of Weathersfield, in accordance with 17 V.S.A. § 2664 and 22 V.S.A. 
§ 142, authorize the Proctor Library Trustees to expend such grant monies, gifts, or bequests which may be 
received by the Proctor Library, in accordance with the terms of said grants, gifts, or bequests?  

 
Motion made by Michael Todd 
Paul Tillman – 2nd 
No discussion 
Vote – unanimous 

 
Article 3: Shall the voters of the Town of Weathersfield authorize the Select Board to borrow money, if 
necessary, to pay current expenses in anticipation of taxes in accordance with the provisions of Title 24, 
Section 1786 of the Vermont Statutes Annotated.  

 
Motion made by Paul Tillman 
Michael Todd – 2nd 
No discussion 
Vote – unanimous 

 
Article 4: To transact any other business deemed proper when met.  

 
Motion made by Michael Todd 
Paul Tillman – 2nd 
No discussion 
Vote – unanimous 

 
Article 5: To elect all Town Officers as required by law.  

 
Position         Term  

 
Moderator/Town        1 Year  
Selectperson         3 Year  
Selectperson         2 Year  
Lister          3 Year  
Lister          3 Year / 2  
Remaining Trustee of Public Funds      3 Year  
Cemetery Commissioner       5 Year  
Library Trustee        3 Year  
Moderator/School        1 Year  



  

 

\ 

School Director        3 Year  
School Director        1 Year  
School Director        1 Year  

 
*Approved by Selectboard 

 
Article 6: Shall the voters of the Town of Weathersfield approve the expenditure of $1,445,409 for the 
support and operation of the Town’s General Fund? $1,075,448 shall be raised by property taxation, allowing 
the Selectboard to set the appropriate tax rate.  

 
Motion made by Michael Todd 
Paul Tillman – 2nd 
No discussion 
Vote – unanimous 

 
Article 7: Shall the voters of the Town of Weathersfield approve the expenditure of $1,180,468 for the 
support and operation of the Town’s Highway Fund? $930,341 shall be raised by property taxation, allowing 
the Select Board to set the appropriate tax rate.  

 
Motion made by Michael Todd 
Paul Tillman – 2nd 
No discussion 
Vote – unanimous 

 
Article 8: Shall the voters of the Town of Weathersfield approve the expenditure of $298,643 for the support 
and operation of the Town’s Solid Waste Management Facility? These monies shall be raised by non-tax 
revenues.  

 
Motion made by Paul Tillman 
Michael Todd – 2nd 
No discussion 
Vote – unanimous 

 
Article 9: Shall the voters of the Town of Weathersfield authorize the Selectboard to borrow funds not to 
exceed $270,000 for a period not to exceed 7-years for the purpose of purchasing a fire truck to replace 
Ascutney Volunteer Fire Association’s 1995 Pumper with a new Tanker? The cost of the Fire Truck will not 
exceed $325,000. The balance of the funds needed to purchase the truck will come from the sale or trade-in of 
Engine No. 3 and no more than $50,000 from the Town’s Fire Apparatus Acquisition Reserve Fund.  

 
Motion made by Paul Tillman 
Michael Todd 2nd  
Discussion - Darren spoke about the chassis if we were to do a refurbish on the existing tanker. 7 Year 
payments of $37,142.00. What type of warranty comes with this? 
In this Article the Engine NO is 1 not 3 needs to be changed.  
Vote – unanimous with change 

 
Article 10: Shall the voters of the Town of Weathersfield authorize the Selectboard to borrow funds not to 
exceed $100,000 for a period not to exceed 7-years for the purpose of purchasing a truck/snowplow for the 
maintenance of Town Highways? The new truck will replace a 2012 F550 with 90,000 miles? [Not in Budget]  

 



  

 

\ 

Discussion to change the wording of the article to: Shall the voters of the Town of Weathersfield authorize the 
Selectboard to borrow funds not to exceed $70,000 for a period of 7 years for the purpose of purchasing a 
truck/snow plow for the maintenance of the Town Highways? Total cost of the vehicle will not exceed 
$100,000 of which $30,000 shall come from the Highway Equipment Acquisition Fund. This is to replace the 
2012 F550. [Not In Budget] 

 
Motion made by Michael Todd with changes above 
Paul Tillman – 2nd 
No discussion 
Vote – unanimous 

 
Article 11: Shall the voters of the Town of Weathersfield appropriate the sum of $33,000 to be deposited into 
the Fire Equipment Motorized Reserve Fund? [Not in Budget] Article 12: Shall the voters of the Town of 
Weathersfield appropriate the sum of $33,000 to be deposited into Highway Equipment Reserves? [Not in 
budget]  

 
Remove 

 
Updated Article 11: 
Shall the voters of the Town of Weathersfield appropriate the sum of $33,000 to be deposited into the 
Highway Equipment Reserves? [Not In Budget] 

 
Motion made by Paul Tillman   
Michael Todd – 2nd  
No further discussion 
Vote - unanimous 

 
Article 12: Shall the voters of the Town of Weathersfield appropriate the sum of $1,000, to support the efforts 
of the Friends of the Meeting House (a 501 c3 non-profit for the continued maintenance of the Weathersfield 
Center Meeting House)? [Not in Budget]  

 
Motion made by Paul Tillman   
Michael Todd – 2nd  
No further discussion 
Vote - unanimous 

 
Article 13: Shall the voters of the Town of Weathersfield appropriate the sum of $12,100 to support the 
activities of the Visiting Nurses and Hospice of VT and NH (a 501 c3 non-profit)? [Not in Budget]  

 
Motion made by Paul Tillman   
Michael Todd – 2nd  
No further discussion 
Vote - unanimous 

 
Article 14: Shall the voters of the Town of Weathersfield appropriate the sum of $1,500 to support the 
activities of Southeastern Vermont Community Action (a 501 c3 non-profit)? [Not in Budget]  

 
Motion made by Paul Tillman   
Michael Todd – 2nd  
No further discussion 



  

 

\ 

Vote - unanimous 
 

Article 15: Shall the voters of the Town of Weathersfield appropriate the sum of $2,683 to support the 
activities of the Health Care & Rehabilitation Services of Southeastern Vermont (a 501 c3 nonprofit)? [Not in 
Budget]  

 
Motion made by Paul Tillman   
Michael Todd – 2nd  
No further discussion 
Vote - unanimous 

 
Article 16: Shall the voters of the Town of Weathersfield appropriate the sum of $750 to support the activities 
of Vermont Association for the Blind and Visually Impaired (a 501 c3 non-profit)? [Not in Budget]  

 
Motion made by Paul Tillman   
Michael Todd – 2nd  
No further discussion 
Vote - unanimous 

 
Dated at Weathersfield, Windsor County, Vermont this 20th day of January 2022: 
 

13.) Proposed Future Agenda Items 
 

14.) Approve Warrant  
 

Michael Todd made a motion to approve the warrants of 1-18-2022 as follows: 
 
General Funds     Operating Expenses $23,994.41 

Payroll $44,028.23 
 

Highway Fund     Operating Expenses $27,223.49 
Payroll $32,031.15 

 
Solid Waste Management Fund   Operating Expenses $ 13,670.38   

       Payroll $4,830.63 
 

Library      Operating Expenses $0.00  
Payroll $1,991.08 

 
Grand Totals    Operating Expenses $64,888.28 

Payroll $82,881.09 
 

 
Paul Tillman - 2nd 

No Discussion 
Vote - Unanimous 

 
 

15.) Any other business 
 



  

 

\ 

16.) Executive Session – 1 V.S.A. § 313 Contracts 
 

Executive Session was not held. 
The Chair, David Fuller stated that the Town Solar Project has been turned over to the Town Attorney 
and if anyone on the Selectboard was contacted by the Solar Project to direct them to the Town 
Attorney. 

 
17.) Adjourn 

 
Paul Tillman made motion to adjourn the meeting at 8:41 pm 
Michael Todd – 2nd  
No discussion 
Vote – unanimous 
 
 

Respectfully, 
Chauncie Tillman  
Alt. Recording Secretary



 

 

WEATHERSFIELD SELECTBOARD 
  
  
  
__________________________ 
 David Fuller, Chairperson 

  
  
  
____________________________ 
Joseph Jarvis, Selector 

  
  
  
_________________________ 
Kelly O’Brien, Clerk 

  
  
  
_______________________________ 
Paul Tillman, Selector 

  
  
  
________________________ 
Michael Todd, Vice- Chairperson 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Town of Weathersfield  
5259 US ROUTE 5 | P.O. BOX 550 | WEATHERSFIELD, VT 05030 | PHONE (802) 674-2626 | FAX (802) 674-2117 
 

 

Brandon Gulnick 

Town Manager 

 

February 4, 2022 

RE: Town Manager Update 

 

Dear Selectors,  

 

Martin Memorial Hall Project 

 

The wallpaper & carpet has been removed from the walls, baseboard heating covers installed, and wiring enclosed. The 

contractor is currently preparing the wainscoting to be painted. Everything is on schedule for completion by February 18th.  

 

Annual Town Meeting  

 
This is a reminder that our Annual Meeting will be held virtually on February 26, 2022, at 12:30pm. To attend the 

meeting virtually simply visit our website at weathersfieldvt.org and click the bridge. If you have not already downloaded 

Zoom a window prompt will open to do so. Once Zoom is downloaded it will lead you directly to the meeting. This 

process also applies to all other board/committee meetings in Town.  

 

If you cannot click the bridge on our website, you can also attend with your phone by dialing (929) 205-6099. Enter 

Meeting ID # 542-595-4346 - There is no Participant ID, so press #. The meeting Passcode is 8021#.  

 

Weathersfield Town Garage Solar Project 

 

The Town Garage Solar Project is moving forward. A transfer in ownership took place from Norwich Solar to Barrington 

Power. A meeting was held at Martin Memorial Hall to transfer ownership and discuss our expectations of Barrington 

Power. All documents have been signed and the hold on the project has been released. We expect the project to be 

complete by June 30, 2022. Feel free to visit the Highway Garage at 483 Stoughton Pond Road to take a look at the 

progress.  

 
If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me.  

 

Respectfully,  

 

Brandon Gulnick 

Town Manager 

 

  



Town of Weathersfield  
      5259 US ROUTE 5 | P.O. BOX 550 | WEATHERSFIELD, VT 05030 | PHONE (802) 674-2626 | FAX (802) 674-2117 
 

 

Brandon Gulnick 

Town Manager 

 

February 4, 2022 

 

 

RE: ARPA Discussion 

 

 

 

Dear Weathersfield Residents,  

 

The Weathersfield Selectboard will discuss the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) through a series of public 

input meetings beginning on February 7th, 2022.   

 

The Town of Weathersfield has received $390,546.86 and will receive another $390,546.86 by September 2022 

in American Rescue Plan Act funding. The purpose of the funding is to combat the COVID-19 pandemic, 

including health and economic impacts. The US Treasury recently released the Final Rule, which details how 

the funds can be spent. This is a 500-page document that is still under review. We expect to have it fully 

digested by the end of the month.  

 

In the meantime, the board should provide instruction on how we will move forward with discussions.   

 

 

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me.  

 

 

Respectfully,  

 

 

Brandon Gulnick 

Town Manager 

 



FINANCE REPORT 

To:  Selectboard 

From:  Town Manager 

Date:  01-18-2022 

RE: FY22 Quarter 2 Finance Report   

 

GENERAL FUND 

Revenues 

Overall, revenue in the General Fund is at 52% as of December 31, 2021. Revenue is low due to the 

Appropriation Revenue of $43,600 that will not be collected this year, creating a revenue shortfall. See 

Attachment A - FY22 Quarterly Report 2 Summary.  

Budget projections were completed to year end. See Attachment B - FY22 Projections. Based on this analysis 

we anticipate a $30,007 shortfall in revenue, which is best case scenario and offsets the $43,600 by $13,593.  

 

 

 

Expenses 

Overall, expenses in the GF are at 49% or 1% lower than anticipated. See Attachment A - FY22 Quarterly 

Report 2 Summary.  

Budget projections have been completed to year end. See Attachment B - FY22 Projections. Based on this 

analysis we will finish the year at 99% of budget with expenditures of $8,842 less than anticipated.  

 

 

300,550 

-

1,550 

38,260 

19,000 

5,750 

16,000 

16,662 

173,666 

6,399 

-

23,564 

-

2,433 

7,938 

4,000 

247,032 

17,559 

1,500 

47,006 

15,770 

5,798 

17,438 

15,662 

 -  50,000  100,000  150,000  200,000  250,000  300,000  350,000

Administration

Finance

Library

Town Clerk

Listers

Land Use

Police Department

Fire Services

FY22 GF Revenues

Q4 Projection Q2 Actual Budget



GENERAL FUND CONTINUED… 

 

Conclusion 

Considering the abovementioned information, the shortfall in revenue has been offset with $13,593 in other 

revenue and $8,842 in expenditure cuts. This still leaves us with a year-end projected deficit of $21,165 in the 

General Fund. Please keep in mind these are projections and things can change as we move along through the 

remainder of the fiscal year.  

HIGHWAY FUND 

Revenues 

Overall, revenue in the Highway Fund is at 93.96%. We have been receiving additional state aid to highway 

payments in the amount of $4K quarterly or 16K over FY22. As a reminder, no highway services to the GF will 

be booked this year or in future years. See Attachment A - FY22 Quarterly Report 2 Summary.  

Budget projections have been completed to year end. See Attachment B - FY22 Projections. Based on this 

analysis we will finish the year at 101.32% in revenue OR $15,193 more than anticipated 

 

459,357 

125,614 

74,902 

112,229 

74,497 

61,339 

320,942 

211,344 

253,335 

57,265 

40,226 

52,115 

14,665 

15,706 

187,814 

84,331 

449,423 

123,970 

95,711 

120,974 

62,646 

33,298 

334,528 

210,830 

 -  50,000  100,000  150,000  200,000  250,000  300,000  350,000  400,000  450,000  500,000

Administration

Library

Finance

Town Clerk

Listers

Land Use

Police Department

Fire Services

FY22 GF Expenditures

Q4 Projection Q2 Actual Budget

143,487 

34,550 

29,281 

82,602 

26,000 

29,281 

165,204 

28,250 

29,281 

 -  20,000  40,000  60,000  80,000  100,000 120,000 140,000 160,000 180,000

State Aid

Service to Other Depts

Fund Balance

FY22 Highway Revenues

Q4 Projection Q2 Actual Budget



HIGHWAY FUND CONTINUED… 

Expenses 

Overall, expenses in the Highway Fund are at 43.79%. Personnel is at 39% OR $65,823 less than budgeted. 

This is the result of the Highway Department not being fully staffed. Office expenses are at 76%, Utilities are at 

48%, Highway Garage & Truck expenses are at 41%, Road Materials & Repairs is at 22%, and Debt Service is 

at 100%. 

Budget projections demonstrate that we could end the year with a 200K surplus, most of which is generated 

from the vacant positions.  

 

SOLID WASTE FUND 

Overall, revenues in the Solid Waste Fund are at 81% OR $232,842. Projections show year-end revenue at 

115% or $332,580. 

 

 

577,449 

30,221 

6,277 

148,000 

248,699 

115,161 

222,902 

22,888 

3,008 

60,197 

54,077 

115,195 

455,520 

32,599 

6,253 

138,916 

191,081 

115,195 

 -  100,000  200,000  300,000  400,000  500,000  600,000  700,000

Personnel

Office

Utilities

Garage & Truck

Materials & Repairs

Debt Service

FY22 HIGHWAY EXPENDITURES

Q4 Projection Q2 Actual Budget

$99,735 

$221,127 

$10,057 

$99,735 

$126,616 

$5,661 

$110,935 

$164,114 

$14,000 

 $-  $50,000  $100,000  $150,000  $200,000  $250,000

Solid Waste Assessments

Solid Waste Tokens

Recycling Income

FY22 Solid Waste Revenues

Q4 Projection Q2 Actual Budget



SOLID WASTE FUND CONTINUED… 

Overall, Solid Waste expenses are at 59% or $171,371. Projections show year-end expenditures at 113% or 

$325,670. 

 

 

$59,703.78 

$48,742.19 

$3,206.55 

$85,461.07 

$53,008.49 

$44,959.52 

$22,934.43 

$32,904.66 

$45,580.19 

$1,443.90 

$36,122.72 

$22,116.18 

$20,286.75 

$11,852.22 

$60,976.35 

$49,488.00 

$4,725.00 

$75,416.00 

$51,758.00 

$30,942.54 

$13,500.00 

 $-  $10,000.00  $20,000.00  $30,000.00  $40,000.00  $50,000.00  $60,000.00  $70,000.00  $80,000.00  $90,000.00

Personnel

Office

Utilities

Trash Tippage

C & D Tippage

Recycling Expenses

Other Recycling

FY22 Solid Waste Expenditures

Q4 Projection Q2 Actual Budget



Town of Weathersfield  
      5259 US ROUTE 5 | P.O. BOX 550 | WEATHERSFIELD, VT 05030 | PHONE (802) 674-2626 | FAX (802) 674-2117 
 

 

Brandon Gulnick 

Town Manager 

 

February 7, 2022 

 

 

RE: Fund Balance Discussion 

 

 

Dear Selectors & Weathersfield Residents,  

 

This memo provides information about the Cumulative Fund Balance in the General Fund, Highway Fund, and 

Solid Waste Fund at year-end on June 30, 2021.  

 

As you know, the contract with Sullivan Powers expired after our last audit for FY20. We advertised the Audit 

for bidding purposes and awarded RHR Smith & Company the audit. The first audit is always the most time 

consuming because they pull information for many years to fully understand finance in any given town. On 

January 18th, 2022, our auditors released our cumulative fund balances. Between January 18th to date we have 

been asking questions for the auditors to answer in regard to these numbers. I am now confident to release this 

information.  

 

GENERAL FUND BALANCE 

 

$274,490 of which $45,418 is committed to the FY23 budget & there is a $43,600 revenue shortfall in the 

current fiscal year. I will have a better idea what the total year-end shortfall will be in the next finance report.  

 

HIGHWAY FUND BALANCE 

 

$81,036 of which $76,726 is committed to the FY23 Highway Budget. This $76,726 pays the grader payment of 

$16,429 for FY23 & FY24. The remaining $43,868 has been applied to Highway Fund expenditures for FY23. 

These decisions reduced the tax need for the Highway Fund in FY23 from $946,700 in FY22 to $930,341.  

 

SOLID WASTE FUND BALANCE 

 

We ended the year with a $2,088 deficit in the Solid Waste Fund. There is also a cumulative deficit of $33,314. 

We need to resolve this soon so it does not continue growing, which will be more difficult to deal with. We 

could resolve it with the General Fund cumulative fund balance OR the rainy-day fund OR we could increase 

fees in FY23 to deal with it. There could be other approaches as well. 

 

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me.  

 

 

Respectfully,  

 

 

Brandon Gulnick 

Town Manager 

 



 

 

 

 

TOWN OF WEATHERSFIELD 

VERMONT 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

PROPOSED BUDGET 

FISCAL YEAR JULY 1, 2022, TO JUNE 30, 2023 

 

 

Weathersfield Select Board 

David Fuller, Chair 

Michael Todd, Vice Chair 

Kelly O’Brien, Clerk 

Paul Tillman, Member 

Joseph Jarvis, Member 

 

Town Manager’s Office 

Brandon Gulnick 

Susanne Terrill 

Olivia Savage 

 

Finance 

Gail McKenzie 

Steve Hier 

 

 

 



Page 2 of 33 
 

About Weathersfield’s FY23 Proposed Budget 

 

In response to the concerns posed by COVID-19, the Weathersfield Selectboard opted to hold our 2022 

Annual Town Meeting by electronic means on February 26, 2022, at 12:30pm. The purpose of this 

Budget Narrative is to provide residents with transparent budgetary information explaining the 

utilization of tax dollars, our financial position, and the level of service we can expect for the budget we 

are proposing.  

 

This narrative includes a summary of each fund that explains any changes we are proposing in Fiscal 

Year 2023, which goes into effect on July 1, 2022, and ends on June 30, 2023. Following each narrative 

is an overview of actual/approved revenues and expenditures for five (5) years (FY19-FY23) with the 

exception of Fire Services due to contractual changes that are explained under the General Fund 

overview. There are four (4) columns in each table. The first column indicates the Fiscal Year, the 

second column contains actual revenue/expense data, the third column contains proposed 

revenue/expense data, and the fourth column contains the change in the budget between each respective 

fiscal year.  

 

Overall, the Town is proposing an increase in property tax revenue by 0.83% OR $16,569 across all of 

our funds. During budget discussions we decided to use a total of $122,144 in cumulative fund balance 

for tax relief rather than increase property taxes by this amount. Last year property tax revenue 

accounted for $1,989,221 of General Fund and Highway Fund revenue. This year we’re proposing 

property tax revenue in the amount of $2,005,790. In the case all unbudgeted articles pass (articles 12-16 

on the ballot) then the proposed property tax revenue will increase by $18,035 to $2,023,825 OR a 

1.71% increase overall.  

 

On January 20th, 2022, the Weathersfield Selectboard, after hearing budgetary proposals for each 

department in previous meetings, adopted and approved the FY23 General Fund, Highway Fund, and 

Solid Waste Fund budgets.  

 

As always, if anyone has any questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to contact the Town Office at 

(802) 674-2626. We also recommend that you visit our website at weathersfieldvt.org.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 3 of 33 
 

General Fund Overview 

 
The General Fund is made up of the Administration, Listers, Land Use, Police Department, Fire/ Emergency 

Services, Town Clerk, Finance, and the Proctor Library.  

 

 
 

As depicted above, Administration expenses account for 32% of the General Fund Budget, whereas Library 

accounts for 9% Finance for 8%, Town Clerk for 9%, Listers for 4%, Land Use for 3%, Police for 23%, and 

Fire/Emergency Services for 12%. 

 

 
 

On average General Fund Tax Revenue is 1,060,849 annually, with a high of $1,080,411 in FY21 and a low of 

1,042,451 in FY22. Over the past 5-years, General Fund Property Tax revenue has increased by $5,318 annually 

or 0.49% based on the FY23 proposed General Fund budget (FY19-FY23). 

456,428 

131,376 

114,009 

131,191 

63,445 

47,960 

331,647 

169,353 

 -  50,000  100,000  150,000  200,000  250,000  300,000  350,000  400,000  450,000  500,000

FY23 Proposed General Fund Budget

 Fire  Police  Land Use  Listers  Town Clerk  Finance  Library  Administration

1,048,869 

1,057,068 

1,080,411 

1,042,451 

1,075,448 

 1,020,000

 1,030,000

 1,040,000

 1,050,000

 1,060,000

 1,070,000

 1,080,000

 1,090,000

 FY19  FY20  FY21  FY22  FY23

FY19 - FY23 General Fund Tax Revenue



Page 4 of 33 
 

Overall, we are proposing a total increase in General Fund Expenditures of $5,186 OR 0.36%. This increase is the 

result of increases and decreases within departments between FY22 to FY23.  

 

 
 

The Administration budget is decreasing by $2,929. In the case the Town votes to accept all of the special 501(c)3 

appropriations on the ballot (articles 12-16) then the administration budget will increase by $15,106. The Library 

budget is increasing by $5,763. The Finance budget is increasing by $39,107, however, this is offset by $22,943 

in finance revenue from the Town of Windsor. Weathersfield and Windsor came to an agreement to share a 

professional accountant. The accountant spends 70% of her time in Weathersfield and 30% in Windsor.  

 

The Town Clerk budget is increasing by $18,962, which is the result of increased vault expenses and the hiring of 

a deputy clerk at 24 hours per week. Considering the pandemic and the increase in technical work in the Town 

Clerk’s Office the additional help is necessary. The Listers Office is decreasing by $11,052. This decrease in 

annual expenditures is attributed to resignations in the Listers Office and contracting this work out to a 

professional assessor at a reduced cost. Similarly, our Land Use Department is decreasing by $13,379, which is 

attributed to restructuring the office and the hiring of a new land use administrator. 

 

Police Department expenditures are increasing by $10,705, 60% of which is attributed to an increase in Workers 

Compensation Insurance and 36% is due to an increase in fuel due to the rising cost of fuel. Fire Services is 

decreasing by $41,991 because our Fire Truck loan matures this year.  

 

As you review the budgetary data below you will notice there are 5-years of data for all departments with the 

exception of Fire Services. The Town and the Fire Departments came to a contractual agreement last year that 

moved all finance to the Town. In the past the Town only handled a portion of the Finance for the Fire 

Departments, however, under this contract the Town and Fire Departments have merged all finance. Considering 

these financial changes the books have changed for these departments and finance has been reorganized. There 

are still additional changes that will be made as we move along through the transition.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(2,929)

5,763 

39,107 

18,962 

(11,052)

(13,379)

10,705 

(41,990)

 (50,000)  (40,000)  (30,000)  (20,000)  (10,000)  -  10,000  20,000  30,000  40,000  50,000

Administration

Library

Finance

Town Clerk

Listers

Land Use

Police Department

General Fire Services

FY22-FY23 Departmental Expenditures (Increases/Decreases)



Page 5 of 33 
 

Administration 

Revenue/Expense Overview 

 

Revenues FY19 – FY23 

Tax Revenue 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 1,048,869 /  (27,008) 

FY20 1,057,068 /  8,199 

FY21 / 1,080,411   23,343 

FY22 / 1,042,451  (37,960) 

FY23  1,075,448 32,997 

 

 

Tax Collection Revenue 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 156,311 /  12,137 

FY20 168,771 /  12,460 

FY21 / 188,730   19,959 

FY22 / 191,512  2,782 

FY23  142,500 (49,012) 

 

PILOT Revenue  

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 26,314 /  (505) 

FY20 25,856 /  (458) 

FY21 / 23,987  (1,869) 

FY22 / 25,744  1,757 

FY23  23,834 (1,910) 

 
Revenue from Interest 

 
FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 2,219 /  1,152 

FY20 1,875 /  (344) 

FY21 / 1,100  (775) 

FY22 / 1,216  116 

FY23  966 (250) 

 
Revenue from Other Sources 

 
FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 39,054 /  10,615 

FY20 34,386 /  (4,668) 

FY21 / 41,226  6,840 

FY22 / 46,105  4,789 

FY23  49,354 3,249 

 
 

 



Page 6 of 33 
 

Fund Balance/ Surplus Revenue 

 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 47,053 /  47,053 

FY20 99,247 /  52,194 

FY21 / 55,077  (41,170) 

FY22 / 35,973  (19,104) 

FY23  45,418 9,445 

 
Total Revenue: 1,337,520 

FY22-FY23 Change Budget: (5,481) 

 

Expenditures FY19-FY23 

Personnel 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 198,131 /  (5,879) 

FY20 178,198 /  (19,933) 

FY21 / 217,143  38,726 

FY22 / 247,737  30,594 

FY23  245,652 (2,085) 

 

Ascutney Water District Reimbursable 

 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 9,951 /  (625) 

FY20 9,528 /  (423) 

FY21 / 13,001  3,473 

FY22 / 15,955  2,954 

FY23  16,434 479 

 

Office  

 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 61,267 /  7,334 

FY20 47,352 /  (13,915) 

FY21 / 55,312  7,961 

FY22 / 43,945  (11,367) 

FY23  47,715 3,770 

 

Utilities  

 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 4,879 /  877 

FY20 8,904 /  4,025 

FY21 / 6,554  (2,350) 

FY22 / 8,904  2,350 

FY23  10,500 1,596 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 7 of 33 
 

Legal Fees & Consulting 

 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 10,557 /  (10,662) 

FY20 20,332 /  9,775 

FY21 / 16,813  (3,519) 

FY22 / 11,859  (4,954) 

  10,859 (1,000) 

 

Grants & Fund Balance 

 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 42,302 /  42,302 

FY20 98,953 /  56,651 

FY21 / 55,077  (43,876) 

FY22 / 0  (55,077) 

FY23  0 - 

 

Insurance 

 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 19,939 /  3,709 

FY20 18,341 /  (1,598) 

FY21 / 17,083  (1,258) 

FY22 / 17,500  417 

FY23  16,881 (619) 

 

Tax Collection 

 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 33,282 /  7,027 

FY20 49,530 /  16,248 

FY21 / 39,862  (9,668) 

FY22 / 36,207  (3,655) 

FY23  36,022 (185) 

 

Contracted Services 

 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 24,311 /  207 

FY20 24,179 /  (132) 

FY21 / 24,654  475 

FY22 / 24,658  4 

FY23  24,696 38 

 

Martin Memorial Hall 

 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 40,849 /  8,160 

FY20 21,985 /  (18,864) 

FY21 / 21,211  (774) 

FY22 / 22,164  953 

FY23  18,424 (3,740) 

 



Page 8 of 33 
 

Other Town Services 

 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 19,956 /  8,987 

FY20 11,014 /  (8,942) 

FY21 / 13,800  2,786 

FY22 / 13,800  0 

FY23  13,300 (500) 

 

1879 School House 

 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 49,629 /  (1,202) 

FY20 6,177 /  (43,452) 

FY21 / 10,050  3,873 

FY22 / 10,000  (50) 

FY23  10,000 0 

 

Appropriations 

 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 133,846 /  10,527 

FY20 21,773 /  (112,073) 

FY21 / 22,983  1,210 

FY22 / 22,583  (400) 

FY23  4,548 (18,035) 

 

 

Total Expenses: 456,428 

FY22-FY23 Change Budget: (2,929) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 9 of 33 
 

Finance 

Revenue/Expense Overview 

 
Revenues FY19 - FY23 

 
Tax Revenue 

 
FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 89,411 /  (10,020) 

FY20 108,889 /  19,478 

FY21 / 112,513  3,624 

FY22 / 74,902  (37,611) 

FY23  91,066 16,164 

 
Contracted Services Revenue 

 
FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY22 -  - 

FY23  22,943 22,943 

 

 
Total Revenue: 114,009 

FY22-FY23 Change Budget: 39,107 

 
Expenditures FY19 - FY23 

 
Personnel 

 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 78,015 /  (8,154) 

FY20 94,003 /  15,988 

FY21 / 71,881  (21,122) 

FY22 / 54,132  (17,749) 

FY23  95,839 41,707 

 

Office  

 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 11,396 /  (1,776) 

FY20 14,886 /  3,490 

FY21 / 15,823  937 

FY22 / 20,770  4,947 

FY23  18,170 (2,600) 

 

 
Total Expenses: 114,009 

FY22-FY23 Change Budget: 39,107 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 10 of 33 
 

Listers Office 

Revenue/Expense Overview 

 
Revenues FY19 – FY23 

 
Tax Revenue 

 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 42,333 /  (53) 

FY20 29,902 /  (12,431) 

FY21 / 42,235  12,333 

FY22 / 55,496  13,262 

FY23  48,455 (7,052) 

 

Act 60 – Listers Revenue & Penalty for Late Homestead 

 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 17,704 /  3,478 

FY20 15,742 /  (1,962) 

FY21 / 18,861  3,119 

FY22 / 19,000  139 

FY23  15,000 (4,000) 

 

Total Revenues: 63,445 

FY22-FY23 Change Budget: (11,052) 

 

Expenditures FY19 - FY23 

Personnel 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 36,493 /  (2,199) 

FY20 37,945 /  1,452 

FY21 / 43,455  5,510 

FY22 / 43,372  (82) 

FY23  35,296 (8,077) 

 

Office Expenses 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 21,534 /  3,789 

FY20 7,699 /  (13,835) 

FY21 / 17,641  9,942 

FY22 / 31,124  13,483 

FY23  28,149 (2,975) 

 

Total Expenses: 63,445 

FY22-FY23 Change Budget: (11,052) 

 

 

 

 



Page 11 of 33 
 

Land Use Office 

Revenue/Expense Overview 

 
Revenues FY19 – FY23 

Tax Revenue 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 52,656 /   

FY20 37,146 /  (15,510) 

FY21 / 49,174  12,028 

FY22 / 55,589  6,415 

FY23  42,210 (13,379) 

 

Permits, Fines, and Penalties 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 5,586 /   

FY20 4,291 /  (1,295) 

FY21 / 5,594  1,303 

FY22 / 5,750  156 

FY23  5,750 - 

 

Total Revenue: 47,960 

FY22-FY23 Change Budget: (13,379) 

 

Expenditures FY19 – FY23 

Personnel 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 48,252 /   

FY20 31,408 /  (16,844) 

FY21 / 41,587  10,179 

FY22 / 48,510  6,923 

FY23  33,631 (14,879) 

 

Office 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 691 /   

FY20 965 /  274 

FY21 / 2,550  1,585 

FY22 / 4,098  1,548 

FY23  4,098 - 

 

Commission & Dues 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 3,917 /   

FY20 3,646/  (271) 

FY21 / 4,131  485 

FY22 / 4,231  100 

FY23  5,731 1,500 

 

 



Page 12 of 33 
 

Legal 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 5,382 /   

FY20 5,419 /  37 

FY21 / 6,500  1,081 

FY22 / 4,500  (2,000) 

FY23  4,500 - 

 

Total Expenses: 47,960 

FY22-FY23 Change Budget: (13,379) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 13 of 33 
 

Police Department 

Revenue/Expense Overview 

 
Revenues FY19 – FY23 

Tax Revenue 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 240,384 /  (2,373) 

FY20 299,352 /  58,968 

FY21 / 304,427  5,075 

FY22 / 304,942  515 

FY23  315,646 10,705 

 

Police Fines 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 5,151 /  (1,096) 

FY20 4,486 /  (665) 

FY21 / 5,151  665 

FY22 / 7,000  1,849 

FY23  7,000 - 

 

Corps of Engineers 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 11,003 /  1,756 

FY20 6,615 /  (4,388) 

FY21 / 9,270  2,655 

FY22 / 9,000  (270) 

FY23  9,000 - 

 
Total Revenue: 331,647 

FY22-FY23 Change Budget: 10,705 

 

Expenditures FY19 – FY23  

Personnel 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 216,706 /  12,591 

FY20 249,677 /  32,971 

FY21 / 269,866  20,189 

FY22 / 274,790  4,924 

FY23  286,315 11,525 

Office Expenses 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 15,153 /  (3,505) 

FY20 21,897 /  6,744 

FY21 / 18,286  (3,611) 

FY22 / 29,524  11,238 

FY23  23,455 (6,069) 

 



Page 14 of 33 
 

Insurance & Cruiser Expenses 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 15,982 /  3,814 

FY20 19,093 /  3,111 

FY21 / 17,821  (1,272) 

FY22 / 16,527  (1,294) 

FY23  21,877 5,350 

 

Debt Service 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 12,246 /  (5,290) 

FY20 21,215 /  8,969 

FY21 / 32,625  11,410 

FY22 / 100  (32,525)  

FY23  - (100) 

 

Total Expenses: 331,647 

FY22-FY23 Change Budget: 10,705 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 15 of 33 
 

General Fire Services 

Revenue/Expense Overview 

 
Revenues FY19 – FY23 

Tax Revenue 

 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 53,876 /   

FY20 56,502 /  2,626 

FY21 / 55,890  (612) 

FY22 / 56,045  155 

FY23  7,600 (48,445) 

 
Total Revenues: 7,600 

FY22-FY23 Change Budget: (48,445) 

 

Expenditures FY19 - FY23 

 
Emergency Management 

 
FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 - /  - 

FY20 300 /  300 

FY21 / 300  - 

FY22 / 1,000  700 

FY23  1,000 - 

 
Hydrants 

 
FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 3,496 /   

FY20 7,000 /  3,504 

FY21 / 7,500  500 

FY22 / 8,100  600 

FY23  7,600 (500) 

 
Debt Service 

 
FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 50,380 /   

FY20 49,202 /  (1,178) 

FY21 / 48,090  (1,112) 

FY22 / 46,945  (1,145) 

FY23  0 (46,945) 

 
Total Expenditures: 7,600 

FY22-FY23 Change Budget: (48,445) 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 16 of 33 
 

West Weathersfield Volunteer Fire Department 

Revenue/Expense Overview 

 
Revenues FY22 – FY23 

Tax Revenue 

 

FISCAL YEAR APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY22 73,052   

FY23  81,977 8,925 

 

Other Revenue 

 
FISCAL YEAR APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY22 0   

FY23  0 0 

 
Total Revenues: 81,977 

FY22-FY23 Change Budget: 8,925 

 

Expenditures FY22 – FY23 

Personnel 

FISCAL YEAR APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY22 15,040   

FY23  15,463 423 

 

Office  

 

FISCAL YEAR APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY22 3,725   

FY23  6,325 2,600 

 

Utilities 

 

FISCAL YEAR APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY22 5,550   

FY23  6,850 1,300 

 

Insurance  

 

FISCAL YEAR APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY22 6,666   

FY23  6,666 - 

 

Communications 

 

FISCAL YEAR APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY22 10,581   

FY23  12,078 1,497 

 



Page 17 of 33 
 

Fire Equipment/PPE/Hose Testing & Maintenance 

 

FISCAL YEAR APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY22 29,240   

FY23  32,095 2,855 

 

Highway and Fuel Service 

 

FISCAL YEAR APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY22 2,250   

FY23  2,500 250 

 

Total Expenses: 81,977 

FY22-FY23 Change Budget: 8,925 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 



Page 18 of 33 
 

Ascutney Volunteer Fire Association 

Revenue/Expense Overview 

 
Revenues FY22 – FY23 

Tax Revenue 

 

FISCAL YEAR APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY22 65,585   

FY23  79,776 14,191 

 

Fundraising Revenue 

 

FISCAL YEAR APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY22 11,662   

FY23  - (11,662) 

 

Sale of Assets 

 

FISCAL YEAR APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY22 5,000   

FY23  - (5,000) 

 

Total Revenues: 79,776 

FY22-FY23 Change Budget: (2,471) 

 

 
Expenditures FY22 – FY23 

Personnel 

FISCAL YEAR APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY22 6,065   

FY23  6,072 7 

 

Office 

 

FISCAL YEAR APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY22 7,410   

FY23  6,060 (2,350) 

 

Utilities 

 

FISCAL YEAR APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY22 8,350   

FY23  10,251 1,901 

 

Insurance 

 

FISCAL YEAR APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY22 8,016   

FY23  8,016 - 

 

 



Page 19 of 33 
 

Communications 

 

FISCAL YEAR APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY22 10,581   

FY23  12,078 1,497 

 

Fire Equipment/PPE/Hose Testing 

 

FISCAL YEAR APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY22 34,325   

FY23  35,300 975 

 

Fuel Service 

 

FISCAL YEAR APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY22 2,500   

FY23  3,000 500 

 

Reserve Transfers 

 

FISCAL YEAR APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY22 5,000   

FY23  - (5,000) 

 
Total Expenses: 79,776 

FY22-FY23 Change Budget: (2,471) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 20 of 33 
 

Town Clerk 

Revenue Overview 

 
Revenues FY19 – FY23 

Tax Revenue 

 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 78,337 /  4,829 

FY20 66,320 /  (12,017) 

FY21 / 74,154  7,834 

FY22 / 73,969  (185) 

FY23  84,496 10,527 

 

Operating Revenue 

 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 16,859 /  (2,229) 

FY20 25,360 /  8,501 

FY21 / 20,690  (4,670) 

FY22 / 23,660  2,970 

FY23  28,395 4,735 

 

Computerization Revenue 

 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 5,648 /  (16,170) 

FY20 11,138 /  5,490 

FY21 / 8,600  (2,538) 

FY22 / 8,600  0 

FY23  12,800 4,200 

 

Vault Fee Revenue 

 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 4,082 /  (431) 

FY20 4,173 /  91 

FY21 / 6,000  (1,827) 

FY22 / 6,000  0 

FY23  5,500 (500) 

 

Other Revenue 

 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 26 /  26 

FY20 7 /  (19) 

FY21 / -  (7) 

FY22 / -  - 

FY23  - - 

 

Total Revenue: 131,191 

FY22-FY23 Change Budget: 18,962 

 

 

 



Page 21 of 33 
 

Town Clerk 

Expense Overview 
Expenditures FY19 – FY23 

Personnel 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 78,848 /  (7,157) 

FY20 82,543 /  3,695 

FY21 / 85,009  2,466 

FY22 / 83,821  (1,188) 

FY23  98,716 14,895 

 

Office 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 6,793 /  (202) 

FY20 4,784 /  (2,009) 

FY21 / 10,145  5,361 

FY22 / 14,118  3,973 

FY23  14,065 (53) 

 
Computerization 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 9,548 /  (8,432) 

FY20 15,291 /  5,743 

FY21 / 7,640  (7,651) 

FY22 / 7,640  - 

FY23  9,260 1,620 

 

Vault Expenses 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 9,263 /  912 

FY20 4,181 /  (5,082) 

FY21 / 6,000  1,819 

FY22 / 6,000  - 

FY23  8,500 2,500 

 

Transfer to Rabies 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 500 /  500 

FY20 200 /  (300) 

FY21 / 650  450 

FY22 / 650  - 

FY23  650 - 

 
Total Expenses: 131,191 

FY22-FY23 Change Budget: 18,962 

 

 
 

 



Page 22 of 33 
 

Weathersfield Library 

Revenue/Expense Overview 

 
Revenues FY19 – FY23  

Tax Revenue 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 124,804 /  15,225 

FY20 123,766 /  (1,038) 

FY21 / 137,691  13,925 

FY22 / 124,063  (13,628) 

FY23  129,876 5,813 

 

Other Revenue 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 1,800 /  639 

FY20 1,450 /  (350) 

FY21 / 1,800  350 

FY22 / 1,550  (250) 

FY23  1,550 - 

 
Total Revenue: 131,376 

FY22-FY23 Change Budget: 5,763 

 

Expenditures FY19 – FY23 

Personnel 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 96,600 /  15,497 

FY20 103,425 /  6,825 

FY21 / 107,818  4,393 

FY22 / 94,405  (13,414) 

FY23  96,797 2,393 

Administrative 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 14,608 /  (6,851) 

FY20 14,792 /  184 

FY21 / 17,270  2,478 

FY22 / 16,489  (782) 

FY23  19,658 3,169 

 

Building and Maintenance 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 3,141 /  345 

FY20 2,841 /  (301) 

FY21 / 2,963  122 

FY22 / 2,971  8 

FY23  2,471 (500) 

 

 



Page 23 of 33 
 

Dues & Memberships 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 1,255 /  540 

FY20 1,306 /  50 

FY21 / 1,240  (66) 

FY22 / 1,550  310 

FY23  1,800 250 

 

Library Programs 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 519 /  (178) 

FY20 539 /  20 

FY21 / 1,200  661 

FY22 / 1,200  - 

FY23  1,200 - 

 

Media 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 3,969 /  2,512 

FY20 10,480/  8,335 

FY21 / 2,145  (6,855) 

FY22 / 9,000  - 

FY23  9,450 450 

 
Total Expenses: 131,376 

FY22-FY23 Change Budget: 5,763 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 



Page 24 of 33 
 

Highway Fund Overview 

 

The proposed Highway Department budget includes a property tax revenue request of 2% less than last 

year. This budget uses 76,726 in prior years cumulative fund balance as tax relief for FY23 and FY24. 

The cumulative fund balance was obtained because the Highway Department received more in state aid 

revenue last year due to COVID and the department has been short several workers. We anticipate a full 

crew by spring 2022.  

 

 
 

Highway department wages increased by 3% this year. Insurance benefits fluctuate depending on health 

insurance premiums and the plan type employees choose (single, single + spouse, family). This year 

insurance is increasing by 23% OR 34,307. Over the past 5-years insurance + retirement expenses have 

increased from 173,409 in FY19 to 178,391 in FY23 OR 996 annually. 

 

 
 

Since FY19, Office and insurance expenses have averaged 30,271, Diesel Fuel & Gasoline 55,917, and 

Equipment Maintenance Repairs and Supplies 73,206. We’re proposing an increase in Diesel Fuel and 

Gasoline by 9% due to the increase in fuel prices over the past year & the projected fuel prices next 

year. 

 

$340,251 $328,642 
$360,221 $367,720 $378,752 

$173,409 $177,820 $177,920 
$151,666 

$178,391 

 $-

 $50,000

 $100,000

 $150,000

 $200,000

 $250,000

 $300,000

 $350,000

 $400,000

FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23

Highway Department Wages & Benefits FY19-FY23

Personnel (Wages) Personnel (Insurance & Retirement)

$29,969 $30,354 $30,406 $30,221 $30,403 

$45,036 

$61,049 $59,500 
$54,500 

$59,500 $40,124 

$59,094 

$89,500 
$93,500 

$83,810 

 $-

 $20,000

 $40,000

 $60,000

 $80,000

 $100,000

FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23

Highway Expenditures FY19-FY23

Office & Insurance Diesel Fuel & Gasonline Equipment Mainteance Repairs & Supplies



Page 25 of 33 
 

Highway Fund Overview 

Continued 

 

Paving expenditures have remained at 50,000 annually since FY21, salt expenditures have averaged 

$46,363 annually since FY19, Gravel/Road Material has averaged 76,064, paving repairs 4,862, and 

Chloride $36,139.  

 

 
 

In FY23 we’re proposing to level fund our paving, salt, and gravel/road material expenses and increase 

our paving repairs line item to repair more of our paved roads.  

 

 
 

Since FY21, culvert expenses have remained level funded at $7,000 annually, and utilities and 

communications have averaged $6,660. This past year the Highway Department moved forward with 

digital radios to increase productivity and efficiency, which increased this budget line item from $6,277 

to $10,750 annually.  

 

$-

$58,744 $50,000 $50,000 

$50,000 
$56,821 

$28,495 

$50,000 $48,500 

$48,000 

$103,159 

$67,465 $70,000 $69,699 $70,000 

$24,120 

$39,074 $40,000 $40,000 $37,500 

 $-

 $20,000

 $40,000

 $60,000

 $80,000

 $100,000

 $120,000

FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23

Road Materials & Repairs FY19-FY23

Paving Salt Gravel/Road material Paving repairs Chloride

$250 

$5,957 
$7,000 $7,000 $7,000 

$- $-

$2,500 $2,500 $2,500 

$21,695 

$8,055 $8,000 $8,000 $8,000 
$6,778 

$5,117 $5,000 
$6,277 

$10,127 $9,970 $9,940 $10,000 
$12,000 

$13,000 

 $-

 $5,000

 $10,000

 $15,000

 $20,000

 $25,000

FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23

Highway Expenditures FY19-FY23

Culverts Reclamation and Other Exp

Contract Work(Ditiching and rentals) Utilities & Communications

Summer Mowing



Page 26 of 33 
 

Highway Department 

Revenues Overview 

 
Revenues FY19 – FY23 

Local Tax Revenue 

 
FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 922,053 /  64,317 

FY20 947,632 /  25,579 

FY21 / 946,770  (862) 

FY22 / 946,770  - 

FY23  930,341 (16,429) 

 
State Aid to Highway 

 
FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 142,802 /  (3) 

FY20 146,340 /  3,538 

FY21 / 142,000  (4,340) 

FY22 / 143,487  1,487 

FY23  144,083 596 

 

Permit Revenue 

 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 280 /  (5) 

FY20 340 /  60 

FY21 / 281  (59) 

FY22 / 304  23 

FY23  298 (6) 

 

Service to Other Departments 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 27,987 /  (13,384) 

FY20 36,120 /  8,133 

FY21 / 34,750  (1,370) 

FY22 / 34,550  (200) 

FY23  29,020 (5,530) 

 

Fund Balance 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY20 97,845 /   

FY21 117,756 /  19,911 

FY22 / 29,281  (88,475) 

FY23  76,726 47,445 

 
Total Revenue: 1,180,468  

FY22-FY23 Change Budget: 26,076 

 

 

 

 



Page 27 of 33 
 

Highway Department 

Expenditures Overview 
Expenditures FY19 – FY23 

Personnel 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 567,680 /  16,475 

FY20 563,213 /  (4,467) 

FY21 / 594,998  31,785 

FY22 / 577,449  (19,594) 

FY23  622,443 44,993 

 

Office 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 29,969 /  (4,066) 

FY20 30,354 /  385 

FY21 / 30,406  52 

FY22 / 30,221  (185) 

FY23  30,403 182 

 

Utilities  

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 6,778 /  978 

FY20 5,117 /  (1,661) 

FY21 / 6,435  1,318 

FY22 / 6,277  (158) 

FY23  10,127 3,850 

 

Highway Garage & Truck Expenses 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 133,464 /  (17,333) 

FY20 151,399 /  17,935 

FY21 / 160,500  9,101 

FY22 / 148,000  (12,500) 

FY23  143,310 (4,690) 

 

Road Material & Repairs 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 251,450 /  49,932 

FY20 407,769 /  156,769 

FY21 / 253,000  (154,769) 

FY22 / 248,699  (4,301) 

FY23  244,000 (4,699) 

Fees & Permits 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 1,990 /  1,972 

FY20 1,590 /  (400) 

FY21 / 1,350  (240) 

FY22 / 1,350  - 

FY23  1,350 - 

 



Page 28 of 33 
 

Debt Service 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 100,217 /  (160,449) 

FY20 68,717 /  (31,500) 

FY21 / 77,112  8,395 

FY22 / 115,161  38,049 

FY23  128,835 13,674 

 

Fund Balance 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY20 97,845 /  19,911 

FY21 / 117,756  41,425 

FY22 / 29,281  (88,475) 

FY23  - (29,281) 

 

Total Expenses: 1,180,468 

FY22-FY23 Change Budget: 26,076 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 



Page 29 of 33 
 

Solid Waste Fund Overview 
 

The Transfer Station Joint Committee, which is made up of a representative from Weathersfield, 

Reading, and West Windsor, came to an agreement on a formula to share the fixed cost at the Transfer 

Station. This formula ensures that all three (3) towns are paying their fair share of expenses. The 

agreement reduces Weathersfield’s share of fixed expenses from 77,300 in FY22 to 66,301 in FY23, 

increases Readings share by 615, and West Windsor’s share by 20,224.  

 

 
 

Transfer Station expenses are broken down into fixed and variable costs. Fixed costs are paid through 

Permit Sticker purchases and variable costs are paid for through punch ticket purchases. Fixed expenses 

include personnel, insurance, supplies, maintenance, permits and fees, and office expenses whereas 

variable costs are based on the amount of material being disposed of per resident member of each town.  

 

 
 

As depicted above, average punch ticket revenue since FY19 is $161,741. Punch ticket revenue has 

increased by $6,229 since FY19 OR $1,245 on average per year.  

 

77,100 77,300 
81,100 

77,300 

66,301 

18,635 18,635 18,635 18,635 19,250 

1,785 3,900 6,000 

15,000 

35,224 

 -

 10,000

 20,000

 30,000

 40,000

 50,000

 60,000

 70,000

 80,000

 90,000

FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23

Fixed Cost Contributions Per Town FY19-FY23

Weathersfield Reading West Windsor

158,139 

164,016 

158,381 

163,800 
164,368 

 155,000

 156,000

 157,000

 158,000

 159,000

 160,000

 161,000

 162,000

 163,000

 164,000

 165,000

FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23

Punch Ticket Revenue FY19-FY23



Page 30 of 33 
 

Solid Waste Fund Overview 

Continued 

 

Since FY19, personnel expenses at the Transfer Station have increased from $55,705 to a proposed 

$64,539 in FY23.  

 

 
 

On average, personnel expenses have increased by $1,766.88 annually OR $8,834 since FY19. 

 

 
 

Office expenses have increased from $48,773 in FY19 to $50,143 in FY23 or $274.10 on average 

annually. Office expenses include supplies, permits/disposal tickets, advertising, uniforms and cleaning, 

repairs and supplies, safety equipment, highway and administrative services, and contractual rental 

expenses.  

 

 
 

Tippage & Recycling expenses have increased from $159,142 in FY19 to a proposed $177,868 in FY23. 

The cost of disposing of trash and recycling has increased by $18,726 since FY19. This includes 

increases in trash Tippage, C&D Tippage, and recycling.  

 

55,705 
57,553 

60,509 60,976 

64,539 

 50,000

 55,000

 60,000

 65,000

 70,000

FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23

Personnel

48,773 

44,991 

47,070 

49,488 

50,143 

 42,000  43,000  44,000  45,000  46,000  47,000  48,000  49,000  50,000  51,000

FY19

FY20

FY21

FY22

FY23

Office Expenses

159,142 

167,517 
170,696 172,467 

177,868 

 145,000

 150,000

 155,000

 160,000

 165,000

 170,000

 175,000

 180,000

FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23

Tippage & Recycling Expenses FY19-FY23



Page 31 of 33 
 

Solid Waste Department 

Revenue/Expense Overview 
 

Revenues FY19 - FY23 

                                                                    Weathersfield Solid Waste Assessment 

 
FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 77,100 /   

FY20 77,300/  200 

FY21 / 81,100  3,800 

FY22 / 77,300  (3,800) 

FY23  66,301 (10,999) 

 
Reading Assessment  

 
FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 18,635 /  0 

FY20 18,635 /  0 

FY21 / 18,635  0 

FY22 / 18,635  0 

FY23  19,250 615 

 
West Windsor Assessment 

 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19  1,785 /  1,785 

FY20 3,900 /  2,115 

FY21 / 6,000  2,100 

FY22 / 15,000  9,000 

FY23  35,224 20,224 

Solid Waste Tokens 

 
FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 154,004 /  16,643 

FY20 151,882 /  (2,122) 

FY21 / 150,000  (1,882) 

FY22 / 153,200  3,200 

FY23  155,000 1,800 

 

Solid Waste Reading Punch Tickets 

 
FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 0 /  (1,750) 

FY20 4,025 /  4,025 

FY21 / 2,400  (1,625) 

FY22 / 3,500  1,100 

FY23  2,950 (550) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 32 of 33 
 

Solid Waste - West Windsor Punch Tickets 

 
FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 3,920 /  (1,840) 

FY20 7,875 /  3,955 

FY21 / 5,736  (2,139) 

FY22 / 7,100  1,364 

FY23  6,418 (682) 

 
Recycling Income 

 
FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 13,740 /  3,232 

FY20 6,915/  (6,824) 

FY21 / 15,000  8,085 

FY22 / 14,000  (1,000) 

FY23  13,500 (500) 

Other Revenue 

 
FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 10,232 /  (18,701) 

FY20 121 /  (10,111) 

FY21 / 0  (121) 

FY22 / 0  0 

FY23  0 - 

Revenues: $298,643 

FY22-FY23 Change Budget: $9,594 

 

Expenditures - FY19 - FY23 

Personnel 
 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 55,705 /  3,390 

FY20 57,553 /  1,848 

FY21 / 60,509  2,956 

FY22 / 60,976  468 

FY23  64,539 3,563 

 

Office Expenses 

 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 48,773 /  (5,397) 

FY20 44,991 /  (3,782) 

FY21 / 47,070  2,079 

FY22 / 49,488  2,418 

FY23  50,143 655 

Utilities 

 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 2,139 /  242 

FY20 4,902 /  2,763 

FY21 / 3,823   (1,079) 

FY22 / 4,725  902 

FY23  4,700 (25) 



Page 33 of 33 
 

Trash Tippage& Trucking 

 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 77,402  10,678 

FY20 81,737  4,335 

FY21 / 77,700  (4,037) 

FY22 / 75,416  (2,284) 

FY23  83,427 8,011 

 

C & D Tippage & Trucking 

 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 46,681  7,687 

FY20 47,805  1,124 

FY21 / 56,660  8,855 

FY22 / 51,758  (4,902) 

FY23  53,311 1,553 

Zero Sort Pickup and Tippage 

 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 29,158 /  16,968 

FY20 30,781 /  1,622 

FY21 / 30,336  (445) 

FY22 / 30,943  607 

FY23  30,369 (303) 

 

Recycling Expenses 

 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 5,009 /  (18,778) 

FY20 4,462 /  (547) 

FY21 / 5,000  538 

FY22 / 13,500  8,500 

FY23  10,491 (3,009) 

 

Insurance 

 

FISCAL YEAR ACTUAL/APPROVED PROPOSED CHANGE BUDGET 

FY19 1,419 /  (192) 

FY20 2,953 /  1,534 

FY21 / 1,239  (1,714) 

FY22 / 1,393  154 

FY23  1,393 - 

 
Total Expenses: $298,643 

FY22-FY23 Change Budget: $9,594 

 

 



OFFICE OF THE SELECTBOARD 

David Fuller, Chairman 

Michael Todd, Vice Chair 

Kelly O’Brien, Board Clerk 

Paul Tillman, Member 

Joseph Jarvis, Member 

 

We wish to express our appreciation and to acknowledge the hard work and dedication of our 

Town employees for their exemplary efforts. This entire year has been affected by the ongoing 

COVID-19 issue state-wide. Governor Scott released the Emergency Order on June 14, 2021, 

however, there is still a lot to sort out. We are continuing to review information and work with 

our administration and state agencies to insure the health and safety of our community and the 

continuation of town services.  

 

This year we welcomed newcomer Kelly O’Brien to the Select Board. Michael Todd was 

reelected to a three (3) year term. We continue to work within our budgets and continue to 

discuss how to improve efficiency without decreasing services. COVID-19 has made this 

difficult to do again. We have had several cases where we had to close Martin Memorial Hall 

due to COVID. We continue to work with the State Department of Health for their guidance to 

reopen as quickly as possible and insure the health and safety of residents and employees.  

 

Furthermore, we are working hard to leverage revenue from other sources. In addition to stronger 

revenues, we are constantly working to decrease our expenses throughout Town by ensuring our 

Competitive Bid Process is followed and that we purchase from suppliers with the highest 

quality and lowest price available.  

 

We continue to appreciate and thank everyone at the Highway Department for all of their hard 

work and dedication to our Town as well as our staff at the Transfer Station. Throughout 2022 

our Select Board Representative to Solid Waste, Paul Tillman, and Town Manager Brandon 

Gulnick came to an agreement on a fair and equal payment structure in Weathersfield, Reading, 

and West Windsor. This structure ensures all three (3) towns are paying their fair share of the 

Transfer Stations fixed costs.  The Select Board remains committed to not charging for 

recyclables. Our goal is to continue to recycle as much as we can and to help the state develop 

paths forward to use the recycled materials.  

 

The solar array at the highway garage has been a project that has been on the table for several 

years now. We’re working with the entities to complete that project, which will offer the Town 

an annual lease payment & a 10% credit on each of the department’s utility bills for the next 25 

years in addition to an 11,000 annual lease payment OR 275,000 over the term of the least.  

 

We continue to appreciate and support the Ascutney Volunteer Fire Association and the West 

Weathersfield Volunteer Fire Department. It is a very difficult task at any hour. We also 



appreciate Golden Cross Ambulance for its service to the Town and we remain committed to 

upgrading and constantly reviewing both fire gear and apparatus to insure we have the equipment 

we need to respond to emergencies. The Select Board remains committed to Police Services in 

Town and we thank Police Chief William Daniels and staff for all of the work they put in to keep 

Weathersfield a safe place to live and work. We would also like to take this time to welcome our 

new Office Ryan Prince and K9 AJ to the Weathersfield Police Department.  

 

You will notice the only reserve article on the ballot is for the Highway Fund. Rather than add 

additional articles onto the ballot we will have thoughtful discussion regarding our cumulative 

fund balance to increase our reserve accounts and fully fund the rainy-day fund.  

 

The American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) included $350 billion in pandemic-related aid for state 

and local governments. Vermont received more than 1.25 billion of Coronavirus State and Local 

Fiscal Recovery Funding from ARPA. Congress directed nearly $200 million of that funding 

directly to Vermont’s cities, towns, and villages. Treasury recently released guidance on what we 

can use these funds for, however, the guidance is nearly 500 pages long and VLCT / our 

administration is still sorting through it. We will begin to have these discussions at our regularly 

scheduled Selectboard meetings beginning in February 2022.  

 

The Select Board gratefully acknowledges the time our residents donate to the community by 

serving on the various Town Boards and Committees. We value the knowledge and expertise 

that each member contributes to our community. We would like to thank the various boards this 

year for all of the time members have dedicated. If anyone is interested in serving the town in 

any capacity, please feel free to contact the Town Office for information on how to become 

involved.  

 

 



Town of Weathersfield  
    5259 US ROUTE 5 | P.O. BOX 550 | WEATHERSFIELD, VT 05030 | PHONE (802) 674-2626 | FAX (802) 674-2117 
 

 

Brandon Gulnick 

Town Manager 

 

February 4, 2022 

 

Re: Substitute/ Acting Town Manager Discussion  

 

Dear Selectors,  

 

The Chair asked me to add this topic on the Agenda, to discuss the appointment of someone that will act in my 

place when I am on Vacation and/or if I am out due to serious illness or other emergency (car accident, etc.). In 

any profession there is always risk for something like this to happen. When the Selectboard Chair cannot make 

a meeting or set the agenda than there’s a Vice-Chair to do this. I think Mr. Fuller is seeking a similar structure 

in my office.  

 

I reached out to VLCT to figure out how this process should be accomplished. I also reached out to the Town 

Manager’s in Windsor, Springfield, Woodstock, Cavendish, Thetford, and Hartland to see what they do. So far, 

I have received responses from Windsor, Thetford, Hartland, and Springfield. I will update you on the 

remaining towns responses once received.  

 

1. According to the Town of Springfield, “if the manager will be out for 2 consecutive weeks, the manager 

designates an acting manager.” Since Mr. Mobus has not been out 2 consecutive weeks this has not 

occurred. There is no obvious 2nd in command either. According to Mr. Mobus, when he’s been out for a 

few days, he asks the Town Clerk to be a resource with the department heads. If he had to be out for 2 

weeks or more, he would likely name his finance director.  

 

2. According to Bryan Gazda in Thetford, he goes on vacation and does not name anyone. He keeps his 

work phone, and the department heads know they can call in a true emergency.  

 

3. According to Dave Ormiston in Hartland, when he goes on vacation he considers his finance 

administrator more like an assistant town manager, and he steps up and deals with anything day to day. 

Otherwise, his department heads like his highway foreman and recreation director have the authority to 

deal with anything that comes up that is in their domain. Mr. Ormiston checks his email daily when he’s 

out on vacation so if anything happens that requires his authority, he will deal with it.  

 

4. According to Tom Marsh in Windsor, he has an Acting Town Manager that is appointed annually with 

his recommendation. Sometimes it’s the police chief and sometimes its his administrative assistant. The 

only real purpose is to have someone around that can officially sign documents if needed while Tom is 

away. Tom stated that this has only been necessary 2 times in his 10 years.  

 

Given the abovementioned information, if a Substitute Manager or Acting Manager is for discussion, I do not 

think it’s necessary. If I died in a car accident and/or suffered extreme illness, then the Town would likely need 

to appoint an Interim Town Manager rather than an Acting/ Substitute Manager to fill in until a new Town 

Manager is appointed to replace me.  

 

Considering the sensitivity of my position I am not willing, nor do I feel comfortable with anyone signing 

documents under my authority while I am out. In the case of vacations, I generally get all of my work done 

 



prior to leaving & take a few hours while I’m out to review payroll because it gets done on a weekly basis 

requiring my authorization. I think this can be resolved if we move to a bi-weekly payroll, which is more 

efficient anyways.  

 

There are several other reasons I will argue there is no need for an Acting Town Manager if the 

abovementioned reasons are not enough to satisfy the request for discussion. 

 

 

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me.  

 

 

Respectfully,  

 

 

 

Brandon Gulnick 

Town Manager 
















































	1. Select_Agenda_02-07-2022
	2. Select_Board_Minutes_1-20-22_Draft
	5. Town Manager Update - 02-07-2022
	6. ARPA Discussion
	7. Quarterly Finance Report - 01-18-2022
	8. Fund Balance Discussion
	9. 01.31.22 -  FY23 Budget Proposal
	9a. OFFICE OF THE SELECTBOARD - 2022 ANNUAL REPORT
	11. Substitute Town Manager
	13. Warrant

